








 
 
 
 

August 29, 2014 
 
 
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
PO Box 955 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
mgrant@spjusd.org 
 
Dear Superintendent Grant: 
 
This letter is to inform you that the State Superintendent of Public Instruction has 
approved the Sierra-Plumas Unified School District’s Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) for the 2014–15 school year, pursuant to Education Code (EC) Section 
52070.5(d).   
 
As you know, the Superintendent is required to review and approve the LCAP or the 
annual update to an existing LCAP prior to the approval of the LEA’s adopted budget 
[EC sections 1622(b)(3)(A), 42127(d)(2)]. You will receive an additional notification 
when the budget is approved. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this subject, please contact Jeff Breshears, 
Education Administrator, Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at  
916-319-0303 or by e-mail at jbreshears@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Christine Swenson, Director 
Local Agency Systems Support Office 
 
CS:jb 
 

mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org
mailto:jbreshears@cde.ca.gov


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2014/15Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD   

1100 1,466,064.00 1,466,064.00 1,333,585.70 6,544.86 125,933.44 Teachers Salaries

1120 43,027.00 43,027.00 43,027.00 Certificated Substitutes

1300 220,448.00 220,448.00 183,706.80 36,741.36 .16-Certificated Superv/Admin Sala

1310 35,997.00 35,997.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 24,997.00 Teacher In Charge/Head Teacher

Total for Object 1000 1,765,536.00 1,765,536.00 1,527,292.50 44,286.22 193,957.28 

2100 151,574.00 151,574.00 133,276.71 76.36- 18,373.65 Instructional Aides Salaries

2200 300,625.00 300,625.00 199,438.37 36,943.88 64,242.75 Classified Support Salaries

2220 17,225.00 17,225.00 14,324.51 2,900.49 Classified Support Substitute

2300 2,160.00 2,160.00 180.00 1,980.00 Classified Sup/Admin Salaries

2400 203,224.00 203,224.00 176,012.16 27,212.86 1.02-Clerical & Office Salaries

2900 26,579.00 26,579.00 22,169.32 18.92 4,390.76 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 701,387.00 701,387.00 530,896.56 78,603.81 91,886.63 

3101 160,844.00 160,844.00 129,210.40 3,826.07 27,807.53 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3102 3,101.00 3,101.00 499.60 2,601.40 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3201 6,170.00 6,170.00 6,170.90 .90-Public Employees Retirement Sy

3202 65,239.00 65,239.00 52,382.50 7,487.96 5,368.54 Public Employees Retirement Sy

3212 5,375.00 5,375.00 4,650.50 724.61 .11-Pers Pickup-Classified Employe

3311 6,004.00 6,004.00 2,963.50 12.40 3,028.10 OASDI-Certificated Positions

3312 42,435.00 42,435.00 32,030.56 4,769.76 5,634.68 OASDI-Classified Positions

3321 25,137.00 25,137.00 20,120.60 610.48 4,405.92 Medicare-Certificated Position

3322 10,027.00 10,027.00 7,575.88 1,118.11 1,333.01 Medicare-Classified Positions

3401 409,853.00 409,853.00 374,634.40 4,267.48 30,951.12 Health & Welfare -Certificated

3402 147,363.00 147,363.00 124,900.30 22,463.62 .92-Health & Welfare-Classified Po

3501 936.00 936.00 763.80 625.90 453.70-State Unemployment Insurance-C

3502 350.00 350.00 265.39 453.70 369.09-State Unemployement Insurance-

3601 102,049.00 102,049.00 77,868.40 2,303.90 21,876.70 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3602 39,117.00 39,117.00 27,926.88 4,121.80 7,068.32 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3701 13,884.00 13,884.00 13,884.00 Retiree Benefits Cert.

3901 108,954.00 108,954.00 2,439.76 106,514.24 Other Benefits, Certificated P

3902 6,903.52 6,903.52-Other Benefits, Classified Pos

Total for Object 3000 1,146,838.00 1,146,838.00 861,963.61 62,129.07 222,745.32 

4100 85,800.00 85,800.00 304.04 2,484.06 83,011.90 Textbooks

4300 111,447.00 111,447.00 56,027.85 10,021.33 45,397.82 Materials and Supplies

4350 24,766.00 24,766.00 2,901.43 65.62 21,798.95 Vehicle Maint. M&S

4400 3,816.00 3,816.00 8,355.07 4,689.47 9,228.54-Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2015, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  3 2014  2:54PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3212
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3321
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2014/15Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

Total for Object 4000 225,829.00 225,829.00 67,588.39 17,260.48 140,980.13 

5100 176,461.00 176,461.00 151,461.16 24,999.84 Subagreement for Services

5200 48,311.00 48,311.00 4,649.19 4,672.48 38,989.33 Travel & Conferences

5300 9,838.00 9,838.00 2,965.50 2,831.50 4,041.00 Dues & Membership

5400 55,080.00 55,080.00 46,188.20 8,891.80 Insurance-Fire, liability, etc

5510 88,519.00 88,519.00 76,715.43 6,183.57 5,620.00 Power

5520 12,813.00 12,813.00 6,569.00 451.00 5,793.00 Garbage

5530 64,350.00 64,350.00 55,433.91 4,436.69 4,479.40 Water

5540 66,500.00 66,500.00 50,677.92 1,322.08 14,500.00 Propane

5590 15,500.00 15,500.00 15,000.00 500.00 Miscellaneous Utilities

5600 74,400.00 74,400.00 63,410.08 3,941.28 7,048.64 Rentals, Leases & Repairs

5800 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,650.00 150.00 1,200.00 Services & Operating Expense

5810 10,000.00 10,000.00 10.00 675.00 9,315.00 Legal Expenses

5812 1,239.00 1,239.00 1,239.00 Board Election Expense

5840 13,500.00 13,500.00 13,700.00 200.00-Audit Expense

5860 13,761.00 13,761.00 10,900.00 2,861.00 Solid Waste Tax

5890 272,057.00 272,057.00 277,615.65 21,172.39 26,731.04-Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic

5899 12,533.91 4,940.85 17,474.76-SCOE Interagency Reimburse

5900 3,550.00 3,550.00 1,052.65 725.60 1,771.75 Communications

5910 16,502.00 16,502.00 7,049.05 471.16 8,981.79 Telephone-Monthly Service

5920 4,800.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 T Lines

5990 225.00 225.00 226.99 1.99-Other Communications

Total for Object 5000 950,406.00 950,406.00 751,620.44 98,161.80 100,623.76 

6200 91,450.00 91,450.00 91,450.00 BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT OF BUIL

6400 57,053.00 57,053.00 38,918.33 17,665.59 469.08 Equipment

6500 119,450.00 119,450.00 119,450.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 267,953.00 267,953.00 38,918.33 17,665.59 211,369.08 

7142 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Other Tuition, Excess Cost, an

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

7616 64,218.00 64,218.00 64,218.00 Trans fr Gen Fund to Cafeteria

7619 81,350.00 236,350.00 236,350.00 Other Interfund Transfers Out

Total for Object 7000 225,568.00 380,568.00 .00 .00 380,568.00 

1,342,130.20 5,283,517.00 5,438,517.00 3,778,279.83 318,106.97 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 13 - Cafeteria   

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2015, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  3 2014  2:54PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5510
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5520
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5530
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5540
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5590
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5812
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5840
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5860
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5910
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5920
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5990
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7142
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7616
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7619


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2014/15Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 13 - Cafeteria   

2200 65,186.00 65,186.00 65,186.54 183.79 184.33-Classified Support Salaries

3202 5,897.00 5,897.00 5,912.00 15.00-Public Employees Retirement Sy

3312 4,041.00 4,041.00 4,041.52 11.39 11.91-OASDI-Classified Positions

3322 945.00 945.00 945.11 2.66 2.77-Medicare-Classified Positions

3402 13,840.00 13,840.00 13,840.40 .40-Health & Welfare-Classified Po

3502 32.00 32.00 32.63 .09 .72-State Unemployement Insurance-

3602 3,689.00 3,689.00 3,484.40 9.83 194.77 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

Total for Object 3000 28,444.00 28,444.00 28,256.06 23.97 163.97 

4300 8,500.00 8,500.00 5,322.42 523.06 2,654.52 Materials and Supplies

4400 1,471.68 1,471.68-Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $

4700 45,270.00 45,270.00 42,500.00 2,770.00 Food

Total for Object 4000 53,770.00 53,770.00 49,294.10 523.06 3,952.84 

5300 261.00 261.00 261.00 Dues & Membership

5600 2,979.00 2,979.00 539.25 2,439.75 Rentals, Leases & Repairs

5800 956.00 956.00 326.25 93.75 536.00 Services & Operating Expense

5890 264.00 264.00-Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic

5900 121.00 121.00 121.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 4,317.00 4,317.00 865.50 357.75 3,093.75 

7,026.23 151,717.00 151,717.00 143,602.20 1,088.57 Total for Fund 13 and Expense accounts

Fund 35 - State Facilty   

5890 757.07 757.07-Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic

757.07-.00 .00 .00 757.07 Total for Fund 35, Expense accounts and Object 5000

Fund 40 - Dist Build   

5890 3,850.00 3,850.00 3,850.00 Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic

6200 173,500.00 328,500.00 2,200.00 325,962.31 337.69 BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT OF BUIL

4,187.69 177,350.00 332,350.00 2,200.00 325,962.31 Total for Fund 40 and Expense accounts

Fund 73 - Bechen   

5800 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Services & Operating Expense

3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 73, Expense accounts and Object 5000

1,355,587.05 5,615,584.00 5,925,584.00 3,924,082.03 645,914.92 Total for Org 006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2015, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  3 2014  2:54PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=4700
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=35&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=40&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=40&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=71050&p2=6&p3=73&p8=Fund&p7=5800


ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH

2014-2015

Loyalton Loyalton Loyalton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term

Elementary Jr High Sr High Elementary Jr/Sr High Pass Cont ISP TOTAL

Ending 2013-2014 178 42 98 32 21 11 included in site # 382

1st Day 2014-2015 168 50 92 31 18 5 included in site # 364

2013 CALPADS 172 counted w/LHS 146 29 21 9 16 393

Month

September 1

October 2

November 3

December 4

January 5

February 6

March 7

April 8

May 9

June 10

2013-2014 S-PJUSD SDC Washoe Cnty

P-1 ADA 351.97 0 13.23

P-2 ADA 351.05 0 13.34

Annual ADA 353.91 0 13.37

 

doc:Board/Attendance Summary 2014-15

Enrollment difference from June 6, 2014 to  
August 25, 2014: -18 

Long Term ISP: 
LES - 4 
LHS -5 

Prepared by sroberts 9/4/2014 Page 1



SPJUSD_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_68E872B 1

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
2013-2014 Unaudited Actuals

Presented September 9, 2014

Student Attendance/Enrollment

Attendance:
2010/2011

P2
2011/2012

P2
2012-2013

P2
2013/2014

P2
2014/2015

Proj
2015/2016

Proj
Downieville Elementary 24.97 28.39 26.89 29.17 26.60 24.70
Downieville Jr. High 5.91 5.03 6.72 5.74 5.95 6.82
Downieville Sr. High 20.85 19.50 17.03 13.86 13.30 12.35
Loyalton Elementary 176.05 171.30 156.91 165.24 163.20 159.36
Loyalton Middle 51.89 49.71 48.52 42.58 46.55 56.05
Loyalton High 112.82 107.73 103.16 90.97 96.29 97.52
Sierra Pass – Continuation 1.34 1.15 4.66 3.49 1.00 1.00
District Total 393.83 382.81 363.89 351.05 352.89 357.80
Washoe Students 10.21 10.21
Supplemental Percent 49.34% 49.67% 49.60%
Enrollment: CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS proj CBEDS proj

Downieville Elementary 28 27 28 29 20 20
Downieville Jr. Sr. High 30 27 24 21 24 24
Loyalton Elementary 187 176 159 172 176 178
Loyalton 7-8 graders 56 49 53 w/LHS w/LHS w/LHS
Loyalton High 120 112 104 146 144 146
Sierra Pass – Continuation 3 0 5 9 3 4
District Total 424 391 373 377 367 372

General Fund Form 01:

Ending Fund Balance (page 2, F.2)
Beginning Fund Balance 7/01/2014:   $2,496,090
Ending Fund Balance: 6/30/2014: $2,755,931 - an increase of ($259,841).

Components of Ending Fund Balance 2013-2014
1) Revolving Cash: $ 3,400
2) Prepaid Exp.: $ 3,055
3) Restricted: $   125,626
4) OPEB: $ 266,936
5) REU: $ 514,950
6) Unassigned: $1,841,964

REVENUE
Local Control Funding Formula
The LCFF is intended to provide a funding mechanism that is simple and transparent while allowing local
educational agencies (LEAs) maximum flexibility in allocating resources to meet local needs. Therefore, most
State Categorical programs have been eliminated. District’s students per ADA will be funded by their grade level.
In addition to the base grade rate will be an increase per K-3 students, 9-12 for Career Technical Education, and
supplemental and possible concentration grant funds. The State anticipates full LCFF funding in approximately
seven years. Currently, DOF estimates for LCFF gap funding for 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 are as follows:

Year 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Gap Funding 28.06% 30.39% 19.50%



SPJUSD_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_68E872B 2

The chart below compares revenue for 2011-2012 actuals, 2012-2013 actuals, 2013-2014 budget and unaudited
actuals, and 2014-2015 budget.

Description 2011-2012
Actuals

2012-2013
Actuals

2013-2014
Original
Budget

2013-2014
Unaudited

Actuals

2013-2014
Increase/(decrease)

Budget vs. UA

2014-2015
Budget

LCFF $3,067,795 $2,997,032 $2,983,765 $3,981,735 $997,970 $4,108,347
Federal 742,003 607,441 94,371 569,490 475,119 552,813
Other State 1,074,867 1,126,226 1,079,588 166,326 (913,262) 354,763
Local 255,443 226,560 244,018 224,078 (19,940) 229,191

Pliocene Sale 460,000 467,749 7,749
Total $5,140,108 $4,957,259 $4,861,742 $5,409,378 547,636 $5,245,114

Expenditures and Financing Uses

3,981,735
74%569,490

10%

166,326
3%

224,078
4%

467,749
9%

Revenue  $5,409,378

LCFF Sources

Federal

Other State

Local

Pliocene Sale

1,706,737
33%

666,389
13%

1,073,568
21%

171,609
3%

1,332,433
26%

49,763
1%

588
0%

60,851
1% 87,600

2%

Expenditures and Financing Uses    $5,149,538

Certificated Salary

Classified Salary

Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies

Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo to SCOE

Transfer to Cafeteria

T/F to Special Reserve



SPJUSD_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_68E872B 3

The chart below compares revenue for 2011-2012 actuals, 2012-2013 actuals, 2013-2014 budget and unaudited
actuals, and 2014-2015 budget.

Description 2011-2012
Actuals

2012-2013
Actuals

2013-2014
Original
Budget

2013-2014
Unaudited

Actuals

2013-2014
Increase/(decrease)

Budget vs. UA

2014-2015
Budget

Certificated $1,755,714 $1,719,914 $1,690,042 $1,706,737 16,695 $1,765,536
Classified 748,129 722,908 659,674 666,389 6,715 701,387
Benefits 1,193,047 1,144,013 1,108,359 1,073,568 (34,791) 1,146,838
Books & Supplies 207,406 184,338 116,473 171,609 55,136 225,829
Services & Operating 1,334,544 1,353,515 1,438,695 1,332,433 (106,262) 950,406
Capital Outlay 76,215 47,280 121,000 49,763 (71,237) 267,953
Special Ed Billback 28,762 27,125 (27,125) 0
Outgo to SCOE 588 588
Outgo to Washoe 80,000
Trfr to Special Reserve 5,970 87,600 87,600 81,350
Trfr to Cafeteria 41,709 58,496 76,474 60,851 (15,623) 64,218
Trfr to Facility Fund 375 770,601 376,834 0.00 (376,834)
Total $5,357,139 $6,035,797 $5,614,676 $5,149,538 (465,138) $5,283,517

 Transportation
o 2013-2014

 Sierra Transportation $176,949
 White’s Bus 475,000

$651,949

 State Funding $488,250
 Local 7,258

$495,508

o 2013-2014 shortfall: $156,441

 Capital Assets……………………………………….$5,060,514
Additions:
Building Improvements:
 LHS Roof/Fire Upgrade …….…..$1,629,269
 AG Barn Repair…………………..$     16,168

Deletions:
Building Improvements:
 LHS Roof/Fire Upgrade …….…..$ 616,003

Work in Progress
Land Improvements:
 Loyalton High Parking Lot ………$ 97,600

 Classroom Compensation, Form CEA,  per Ed Code 41374
o Minimum percent of current cost expended for classroom is 55%: District’s is 52.24%
o Deficiency amount: $110,962
o County Superintendent waived penalty

 Debt
o OPEB obligation, annual required contribution less pay-as-you go:  $266,936
o Compensated Absences Payable:  $14,922

 Indirect Cost Preliminary Rate:
o Fiscal Year 2013-2014: 18.30%
o Fiscal Year 2014-2015: 16.44%
o Fiscal Year 2015-2016: 8.76%

 Lottery:



SPJUSD_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_68E872B 4

o NonProp20
 Funded at $125 per ADA
 Computers and technology material
 Technology contracted services
 PowerSchool training
 Field trip transportation

o Prop20
 Funded at $31.00 ADA
 Instructional textbooks

 No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort (MOE)
o Required effort: $11,994.24
o Expenditure per ADA $13,430.25 MOE Met

OTHER FUNDS

Cafeteria Fund 13:
Downieville Loyalton

Meals Served 13/14 12/13 13/14 12/13
Breakfast 2,994 3,432 7,115 4,775
Lunch 5,548 5,832 18,514 18,077

Cost Per Meal
Breakfast $2.88 $1.92 $2.72 $3.86
Lunch $4.52 $4.08 $5.86 $5.76

Deficit $9,321 $51,531

County School Facilities Fund 35
Loyalton High Replacement roof was completed August 2013 for a total cost of 1.6M, including all abatement.
Office of Public Construction Hardship Program released funds August 2014 in the amount of $1,015,625.

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects
Loyalton High Paving Project at June 30, 2014, was 52% completed for a total cost of $355,154.

The Portable Restroom project was accepted by the State Spring of 2014. August 2014, the District received
$20,948 from the City leaving a balance of $11,153.

Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 73
The Scholarship started in 1986 for the purpose to award one scholarship to a qualified Loyalton High School
student. The term of the scholarship has been satisfied, and currently the fund awards three scholarships in the
amount of $1,000.  Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2014 is $54,217.





MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 

THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

August 12, 2014 

Goal Setting Session:  4 pm-6 pm  

Reconvened immediately following the 6:00 pm meeting of the  

Sierra County Board of Education 

  Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 
 

This meeting was not available for videoconferencing. 

 

A.  President Mike Moore called the meeting to order at 4 p.m. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

C.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

  HALL/WRIGHT 

 5/0 

 

D.  DISCUSSION:   

 1.  Goals for 2014-15 School Year   

a. Leadership  

b. Student Academic Program 

c. Student Support and Safety 

d. Facilities 

e. Communication 

f. Staff Professional Development 

 

 ADJOURN FOR BREAK at 5:35 pm and commencement of Sierra County Board Of 

 Education meeting at 6 pm.  

 DRYDEN/HALL 

 5/0 

 

E. RECONVENED at 6:35 pm. 

 HALL/DRISCOLL  

 5/0 

 

F. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

 1.   Correspondence – There was none. 

 

 2.   Superintendent’s Report 

a. Goals Discussion – Dr. Grant reported that the Goals Discussion included direction for next 

year and accountability regarding administration configuration.  Dr. Grant will share the 

results with the teachers at the Inservice next week.  Ongoing areas of emphasis will be rolled 

over from last year.  

b. Facilities Report – Our funding source has changed for district facilities.  The LCFF provides 

us with more control to fund needed facilities repair and maintenance.  Now that we are 

unrestricted we have accomplished the paving of the Loyalton High School parking lot, 

painting the Downieville School and the "C Complex" in Loyalton.  

c. Distance Learning- Downieville master schedule for 2014-15 will include online classes 

during the regular class schedule.  There are students, grade 6-8, that are taking an elective or 

a core class, based on need. At Loyalton High School, online language programs and 

alternate math courses are available.  

d. Inter-District Attendance Agreements 
 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 2 

 3.   Business Report 

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 6/30/14 

b. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/1/14 to 7/31/14 

 

 4.   Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

  Marla Stock, Loyalton High School Administrator, reported on parent orientation, the 7
th
 and 8

th
  

  grade Leadership Retreat and upcoming football home game. 

 

 5.   SPTA Report (5 minutes) 

 

 6.   Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

  WRIGHT commented positively on Loyalton High School's recent repairs. 

  

7.   Public Comment –There was no comment. 

 

G.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held June 18, 2014  

2. Approval of the minutes of the Special Board meeting held July 10, 2014 

3. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of June 2014 

4. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of July 2014 

5. Authorization to Submit Ag Career Tech Education Incentive Grant  

6. Approval of assignment of Augustine Corcoran to 2014-2015 Varsity Girls Volleyball Coach, 

 Downieville School 

7. Approval of assignment of Augustine Corcoran to 2014-2015 Varsity Boys Basketball Coach, 

 Downieville School 

8. Approval of assignment to teach core subjects outside of credential area for 2014-2015 school 

 year: 

 

WRIGHT/HALL  

5/0 

 

Teacher Site Subject/Grade Sections 

EC §         

Section 

     

Meschery, M LHS English 9,10 4 44263 

Griffin, C LHS PE, 9-12 2 44865 

Nunes, J LHS Social Science, 9-12 4 44865 

Nunes, J LHS Social Science, 7-8 2   44258.3 

Fisher, M LHS Earth Science, 9-10 1  44865 

Fisher, M LHS PE, 7-8 2  44258.3 

Corcoran, A DVL Spanish 9-12 1 44865 

Corcoran, A DVL PE, 9-12 1 44865 

Tassone, S DVL Biology, 9-12 1 44865 

Tassone, S DVL Math, 9-12 1 44865 

Tassone, S DVL Math, 7-12 1 44258.3 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 3 

H.  ACTION ITEMS  

 

1. Unfinished Business and General Orders 

 

1415-01 Approval of Revision to Lead Teacher Job Description 

 WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

 WRIGHT motioned to pull Items 1415-02, 03, 04 and 05 due to awaiting further revision from 

 California School Boards Association. HALL seconded. 

 

1415-02 Approval of Board Policy and/or Administrative Regulation 1312.3, Uniform Complaint 

 Procedures, revision 

 

1415-03 Approval of Board Policy and/or Administrative Regulation 1312.4, Williams Uniform 

 Complaint Procedures, revision 

 

1415-04 Approval of Board Policy and/or Administrative Regulation 5131.2, Bullying, revision 

 

1415-05 Approval of Board Policy and/or Administrative Regulation 5145.7, Sexual Harassment, 

 revision 

 

2. New Business 

 

1415-06 Adoption of Resolution No. 14-002, Fiscal Year End 2013-2014 Budget Revision 

  DRYDEN/WRIGHT 

  ROLL CALL VOTE: DRISCOLL AYE 

      DRYDEN AYE 

      HALL  AYE 

      MOORE AYE 

      WRIGHT AYE 

      5/0 

 

1415-07 Approval of Resolution No. 14-003, Resolution Amending Resolution No. 13-012 Ordering 

 Election, Requesting County Elections To Conduct The Election, Requesting Consolidation 

 Of The Election, And Specifications Of The Election Order 

 HALL/DRISCOLL 

 ROLL CALL VOTE: DRISCOLL AYE 

     DRYDEN AYE 

     HALL  AYE 

     MOORE AYE 

     WRIGHT AYE 

     5/0 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 4 

 

1415-08 Adoption of Resolution No. 14-004, Local Reserves Cap 

  WRIGHT/HALL 

 ROLL CALL VOTE: DRISCOLL AYE 

     DRYDEN AYE 

     HALL  AYE 

     MOORE AYE 

     WRIGHT AYE 

     5/0 

     

1415-09 Adoption of Resolution No. 14-005, Authorization to Set Up Online Access and Direct  

  Deposit Dividends for the C Bechen III Memorial Scholarship Fund  

  DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 

  ROLL CALL VOTE: DRISCOLL AYE 

      DRYDEN AYE 

      HALL  AYE 

      MOORE AYE 

      WRIGHT AYE 

      5/0 

 

1415-010 Adoption of Resolution No. 14-006, Home-to-School Transportation 

  WRIGHT/HALL 

  ROLL CALL VOTE: DRISCOLL AYE 

      DRYDEN AYE 

      HALL  AYE 

      MOORE AYE 

      WRIGHT AYE 

      5/0 

 

1415-011 Receive and Open Bids for the Sale of Surplus School District Property Located at 605  

  School Street, Loyalton California, APN017-082-04  

 DRYDEN Motioned to open the meeting to receive and open any bids for the above property. 

 HALL seconded.  No bids were presented. 

 

1415-012 Authorization to fill Classroom Teacher Position, Grades 4-6, 1.0 FTE, Downieville   

 Elementary School  

 WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-013 Authorization to hire Mary McDermid, Classroom Teacher, Grades 4-6, 1.0 FTE,  

 Downieville Elementary School, as of August 21, 2014 

 WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-014 Authorization to hire Leslie Granka, Classroom Teacher, Sierra Pass Continuation School, 

 1.0 FTE, as of August 21, 2014  

 DRYDEN/WRIGHT 

 5/0 

 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 5 

1415-015 Accept letter of resignation from Amber Baca-Sainsbury, Library Aide, 2 hours daily (.33  

  FTE) and Hall/Playground Supervisor 1.5 hours daily (.25 FTE), Downieville School,  

  effective June 30, 2014 

 WRIGHT/HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-016 Authorization to fill Library Aide position, .33 FTE, Downieville Elementary School 

 DRISCOLL/HALL 

 5/0 

  

1415-017 Authorization to fill Hall/Playground Supervisor position, .25 FTE, Downieville Elementary  

  School  

  HALL/WRIGHT 

 5/0 

 

1415-018 Accept letter of resignation from Laural Colberg, Instructional Aide position, 2.25 hours daily 

  (.375 FTE) and Instructional Aide position, 3.0 hours daily (.50 FTE) Loyalton High School,  

  effective June 30, 2014 

   DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 

  5/0 

 

1415-019 Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, .375 FTE, Loyalton High School serving 

grades 7-8, funded by Title 1 

 WRIGHT/ DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-020 Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, .50 FTE, Loyalton High School serving 

grades 7-12, funded by ELL  

 WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-021 Accept letter of resignation from Rachel Guffin, Instructional Aide position, 1.75 hours daily 

(.291 FTE) and Instructional Aide position, 1.5 hours daily, Downieville School, effective  

 July 16, 2014 

 DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-022 Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, .291 FTE,  Downieville Elementary School, 

serving K-6 grades, funded by Title 1  

  WRIGHT/HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-023 Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, .25 FTE, Downieville Elementary School, 

serving grades 7-12, funded by ELL  

 WRIGHT/HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-024 Approval of 2014-2015 Certificated Substitute List 

 DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 6 

1415-025 Approval of Alternative Education Teacher job description No. 207.91 

 WRIGHT/HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-026 Approval of Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for the 2014-2015 school year 

DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 

 5/0 

 

1415-027 Approval of 2014-15 Professional Development Days, up to 3 Staff Development Activities, 

Certificated Staff, per Certificated Collective Bargaining Unit  

 WRIGHT/HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-028 Determination per P.C.C. 22050 that an Emergency No Longer Exists Regarding the  

  July 10, 2014 Agenda Item 1314-260, Emergency Item, LHS Paving Change Orders    

  WRIGHT/ DRISCOLL 

  5/0 

 

1415-029 Authorization for Superintendent to Enter into an Agreement with Washoe County   

  Schools for Out of State Tuition Agreement 

  DRYDEN/HALL 

  5/0 

 

1415-030 Authorization for Superintendent to enter into an agreement with County of Sierra to provide 

parking base for school buses at Loyalton High School 

 WRIGHT/HALL 

 AYE:  DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, WRIGHT 

 NO:  NONE 

 ABSENT:  NONE 

 ABSTAIN:  MOORE 

 

1415-031 Authorization for Superintendent to enter into an agreement with Richard Griffin 

Construction to install electrical hookups for school buses at Loyalton High School 

  WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-032 Authorization for Superintendent to enter into an agreement with Current Electric to install 

walkway snow mats at Loyalton Elementary School 

 HALL/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-033 Authorization for Superintendent to Enter into an Agreement with Osburn's Paving & Snow 

Removal to repair Loyalton Elementary School Playground Area 

 DRISCOLL/DRYDEN 

 AYE:  DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, WRIGHT 

 NO:  NONE 

 ABSENT:  NONE 

 ABSTAIN:  MOORE 

  

 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 7 

1415-034 Approval of Common Core State Standards Plan 

 WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

1415-035 Authorization for Superintendent to Enter into an Agreement with Capitol Advisor's Group, LLC 

 DRISCOLL/DRYDEN 

 5/0 

 

1415-036 Authorization for Superintendent to Enter into an Agreement with Forest View Screening for 

the purpose of Drug/Alcohol Testing Services 

 DRISCOLL/HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-037 Authorization for Superintendent to Enter into an Agreement with James Marta & Company, LLP 

 WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 

 5/0 

 

  BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

  WRIGHT motioned to approve Items 1415-038 through 1415-044 and 1415-046/HALL  

  seconded. 

  5/0 

 

1415-038 Approval of Board Policy 6141.5 Advanced Placement, revision 

 

1415-039 Approval to Delete Administrative Regulation , 6141.5 Advanced Placement 

 

1415-040 Approval of Board Policy 6142.92, Mathematics Instruction, revision 

 

1415-041 Approval of Board Policy 6151, Class Size, revision 

 

1415-042 Approval to Delete Administrative Regulation 6151, Class Size 

 

1415-043 Approval of Board Policy 6162.5, Student Assessment, revision 

 

1415-044 Approval of Board Policy 6162.54, Test Integrity/Test Preparation, revision 

 

1415-045 Approval of Board Policy 6163.1, Library Media Centers, revision 

 

1415-046 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation  6184, Continuation Education,  

  revision 

 

I.  ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on September 9, 2014, at Downieville School, 

Downieville, CA, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board 

Meeting at 6:00 pm.   

 

 2.   Suggested Agenda items 

  

a. Board Goals 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board Agenda 

August 12, 2014 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Agenda 

 8 

b. Start of School Update 

c. Unaudited Actuals 

d. Policies 

 

J.  ADJOURNMENT 

 HALL/WRIGHT 

 5/0 

 The meeting adjourned at 7:58 pm. 

 

 

_______________________________   ________________________________ 

Sharon Dryden, Clerk     Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D., Superintendent 

 



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 08/01/2014 through 08/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

CAMILLE ALFRED 01-520008/11/201400079476 90.00 

APPLE COMPUTER, INC. 01-640008/11/201400079477 17,665.59 

AT&T 01-951008/11/201400079478 293.13 

BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, INC. 40-620008/11/201400079479 2,130.00 

40-9510 2,355.00 225.00 

CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 01-589008/11/201400079480 214.20 

CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 01-430008/11/201400079481 525.04 

13-4300 701.62 176.58 

CITY OF LOYALTON 01-553008/11/201400079482 4,069.69 

01-5899 4,279.26 209.57 

ANN FISHER 01-520008/11/201400079483 138.00 

GRAINGER, INC. 01-430008/11/201400079484 389.96 

MERRILL GRANT 01-520008/11/201400079485 330.96 

KAREN GRESS 01-520008/11/201400079486 186.00 

INLAND SUPPLY 01-430008/11/201400079487 383.74 

13-4300 730.22 346.48 

MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-560008/11/201400079488 200.00 

LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-551008/11/201400079489 3,135.54 

01-5899 3,286.65 151.11 

MCCUEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. 40-620008/11/201400079490 317,175.01 

40-9510 19,839.06 

40-9515 320,163.39 16,850.68-

MIKE MOORE 76-957608/11/201400079491 565.40 

MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-589008/11/201400079492 113.75 

CRM GROUP 40-620008/11/201400079493 1,400.00 

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-551008/11/201400079494 22.68 

PEARSON EDUCATION 01-410008/11/201400079495 2,484.06 

POSTMASTER, LOYALTON 01-590008/11/201400079496 225.60 

CHRISTOPHER REKSTAD 01-520008/11/201400079497 3,100.00 

RENAISSANCE LEARNING, INC. 01-589008/11/201400079498 8,258.50 

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY OFFICE     OF 

EDUCATION

01-589008/11/201400079499 225.00 

01-5899 300.00 75.00 

ALICIA SCHOFIELD 01-520008/11/201400079500 269.68 

SIERRA BOOSTER 01-589008/11/201400079501 19.25 

SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH          DEPARTMENT 01-551008/11/201400079502 289.50 

SIERRA HARDWARE 01-430008/11/201400079503 364.16 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-589008/11/201400079504 158.48 

SIERRA SCHOOLS FOUNDATION 01-951008/11/201400079505 5,107.85 

SUBURBAN PROPANE-1483 01-554008/11/201400079506 1,000.93 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-390108/11/201400079507 1,219.88 

01-3902 3,451.76 

01-9535 13,005.36 

76-9576 73,348.86 55,671.86 

U.S. BANK 01-430008/11/201400079508 1,080.26 

01-4350 65.62 

01-5899 8.40 

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  3 2014  2:56PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 08/01/2014 through 08/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

U.S. BANK 01-951008/11/201400079508 1,740.11 585.83 

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-430008/11/201400079509 214.83 

01-5200 142.10 

01-9510 384.53 27.60 

WAYNE  WHITE                  WHITE'S BUS 01-951008/11/201400079510 525.00 

AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-560008/27/201400079511 94.78 

ALPINE FIRE SERVICE, INC. 01-560008/27/201400079512 1,200.91 

01-5899 1,244.89 43.98 

AT&T 01-589008/27/201400079513 30.96 

01-5899 16.58 

01-5910 349.37 301.83 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF ED.  

ACCOUNTING OFFICE

35-589008/27/201400079514 757.07 

CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 01-430008/27/201400079515 526.79 

01-4400 3,548.22 3,021.43 

CURRENT ELECTRIC & ALARM, INC. 01-560008/27/201400079516 363.75 

01-5890 85.00 

01-5899 475.00 26.25 

DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-553008/27/201400079517 496.40 

EASTERN PLUMAS HEALTH CARE 01-589008/27/201400079518 95.00 

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT        

DEPARTMENT

01-350108/27/201400079519 603.75 

01-3502 1,018.14 414.39 

EVAN-MOOR                     EDUCATIONAL 

PUBLISHERS

01-430008/27/201400079520 387.95 

GIRARD & EDWARDS              ATTORNEYS AT 

LAW

01-581008/27/201400079521 675.00 

01-5899 990.00 315.00 

HOUGHTON MIFFLIN COMPANY 01-430008/27/201400079522 195.53 

INLAND SUPPLY 01-430008/27/201400079523 304.85 

RICHARD JAQUEZ 01-430008/27/201400079524 278.77 

KP CORPORATION 01-430008/27/201400079525 64.86 

MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-560008/27/201400079526 200.00 

MCCUEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. 40-951508/27/201400079527 16,858.62 

MIKE MOORE 76-957608/27/201400079528 565.40 

MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 13-580008/27/201400079529 93.75 

OLIVER WORLDCLASS LABS 01-440008/27/201400079530 1,668.04 

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-551008/27/201400079531 1,267.78 

POSTMASTER, DOWNIEVILLE 01-590008/27/201400079532 500.00 

RICHARD GRIFFIN CONSTRUCTION 01-589008/27/201400079533 4,552.50 

SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION 01-430008/27/201400079534 195.65 

SCHOOL SERV. OF CALIF. INC. 01-589008/27/201400079535 2,580.00 

SCHOOL PATHWAYS LLC 01-580008/27/201400079536 150.00 

SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH          DEPARTMENT 01-551008/27/201400079537 289.50 

INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 01-552008/27/201400079538 451.00 

01-5899 460.00 9.00 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430008/27/201400079539 765.25 

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-430008/27/201400079540 1,670.87 

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  3 2014  2:56PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 08/01/2014 through 08/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-589908/27/201400079540 1,704.89 34.02 

STARFALL EDUCATION 01-430008/27/201400079541 456.15 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE         ACCOUNTING 

OFFICE

01-589008/27/201400079542 145.00 

TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-589008/27/201400079543 104.00 

VERIZON WIRELESS 01-591008/27/201400079544 46.20 

ANDREA WHITE 01-520008/27/201400079545 145.01 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520008/27/201400079546 21.00 

493,771.89 Total Number of Checks 71 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 63 94,818.34 01

Cafeteria Fund 3 616.81 13

State School Facility Fund 1 757.07 35

Special Reserve for Capital Ou 4 340,777.01 40

Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 3 56,802.66 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 493,771.89 

.00 

493,771.89 

71 

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  3 2014  2:56PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.











 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 
Retiree Health Benefits Liabilities 

 
Alternative Measurement Method 

 
July 1, 2014 

 

 
 

 
 

 
JAMES MARTA & CO LLP 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
CONTACT: 

 
DAVID BECKER, CPA  
PARTNER 
DBECKER@JPMCPA.COM 
 
701 HOWE AVENUE, E3 
SACRAMENTO, CA  
 
(916) 993-9494 
(916) 993-9489 FAX 



 James Marta & Company LLP 
           Certified Public Accountants 
 
                Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax  

   
 

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 
www.jpmcpa.com    jmarta@jpmcpa.com 

 
 

 
August 22, 2014 
 
Rose Asquith 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
P.O. Box 157 
Sierraville, California 96126 
 
Alternative Measurement Method Report 
 
 
Thank you for using James Marta & Company LLP’s services.  This report contains 
the results using the Alternative Measurement Method to calculate your Other 
Postemployment Benefits liability in Accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions.  It also contains a detailed explanation of the calculation.  All 
data and assumptions provided by you are included. 
 
The exhibit below provides the specific results of the calculation, which may be 
used in the preparation of your financial statements.  A description of the results 
and how they were derived are described in the contents of the report. 
 
Specific Results     Valuation Date: July 1, 2014 

Unfunded 
Annual Required Normal Amortization Actuarial Value Actuarial Accrued Actuarially Accrued

Contribution (ARC) Cost Amount of Assets Liability (AAL) Liability (UAAL)

133,535$           84,450$   49,085$    -$                   1,033,624$       1,033,624$           
 
The specific results in the table above were calculated using the Entry Age Cost 
Method with Level Percentage of Payroll Normal Costs and UAAL Amortized as 
Level Percentage of Payroll. 
 
If you should have any questions regarding the methods and assumptions used, 
please do not hesitate to call. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants

http://www.jpmcpa.com
mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


 

 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 
Accountants Agreed-Upon Procedures Report 1 
 
Executive Summary 4 
 
Description of Retiree Benefits Plan 5 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits and Costs 6 
    
Appendix A – Required Footnote Disclosure 8 
 
Appendix B – Employee Data 13 
 
Appendix C – Glossary of Terms 14 
 
 



 James Marta & Company 
           Certified Public Accountants 
 
                Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax  

   
 

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 
www.jpmcpa.com    jmarta@jpmcpa.com 

1

 
 

 
Independent Accountant's Report 

on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 
 

 
To the Board and Management 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by 
the Board and management of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (the 
“District”), solely to assist you in calculating the liability for Retiree Health Benefits 
of the District as of June 30, 2015 in accordance with the Alternative Measurement 
Method as provided in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and to provide information 
necessary to comply with the requirements of said statement.  The District’s 
management is responsible for the underlying assumptions, methods, participant 
data and benefits information used in determining the Retiree Health Benefits 
liability and related disclosures. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was 
conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is 
solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we 
make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described 
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any 
other purpose. 
 
Procedures Performed 
 
1. We obtained from management of the District: 

 
A. A copy of the retiree health benefits plan offered to employees of the 

District as of July 1, 2014. 
B. A list of employees and retirees as of July 1, 2014, which included their 

employment status, gender, number of years employed, and current age. 
C. A schedule of medical premiums, as of July 1, 2014, for single and married 

retirees under the different plans. 
D. The minimum years of service required for employees to qualify for Retiree 

Health Benefits. 
 

http://www.jpmcpa.com
mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


 

 2

2. We used the following trend information: 
 

A. Healthcare cost trend rates were selected based on a combination of 
national and state trend surveys as well as professional judgment.  

B. Expected long-term inflation rate from the United States Social Security 
Administration. 

C. Estimated turnover rates from GASB Statement No. 45, paragraph 35b. 
D. Life expectancy data from the National Center for Health Statistics. 

 
3. We calculated the following: 

 
A. Projected future benefit payments for all employees and retirees in 

accordance with GASB Statement No. 45. 
B. Normal cost, actuarial accrued liability and annual required contribution 

using the Entry Age Level Percentage of Payroll Actuarial Cost Method as 
provided in GASB Statement No. 45 using the Alternative Measurement 
Method. 

 
4. We prepared the footnote disclosure information required by GASB Statement 

No. 45. 
 

Management of the District provided certain assumptions necessary to calculate the 
estimated Retiree Health Benefits liability as of July 1, 2014.  Those assumptions 
include: 

 
a) estimated retirement age of employees of 63, 
b) estimated long-term discount rate of 2% and 
c) the actuarial cost method used which is the Entry Age Cost Method with Level 

Percentage of Payroll Normal Costs and UAAL Amortized as Level Percentage 
of Payroll. 

 
Findings 

 
The total estimated actuarial accrued liability as of July 1, 2014 is $1,033,624 and 
the annual required contribution is $133,535.  For a complete summary of results, 
assumptions and disclosure information, see appendix A. 

 
We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion on the accompanying Retiree Health Benefits 
Liability of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District as of July 1, 2014. Accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other 
matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.  
 



 

 3

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board and 
management of the District, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
August 22, 2014



 

 4

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
This purpose of this report is to provide information needed to comply with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 43 and 45 related to 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB).  Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
should not use this report for any other purpose without discussing with James Marta 
& Company. 
 
Key Assumptions 
 
The following key assumptions were provided by management and used in our 
calculation of the liability for retiree benefits using the Alternative Measurement 
Method for employers in plans with fewer than 100 plan members: 
 

Actuarial Cost Method – Entry Age 
Amortization Method – Level percentage of payroll over a 24 year period 
Discount Rate – 2.00% 
Healthcare Cost Trend – Healthcare cost trend rates were selected based on a 

combination of national and state trend surveys as well as professional 
judgment.  The ultimate trend rate was 4.0%. 

Payroll Growth Rate – 1.0% 
Long-Term Inflation Rate – 2.75% 
Asset Valuation – There were no assets placed in an irrevocable trust. 

 
OPEB Liabilities 
 

Present Value of Total Projected Benefits - $2,104,299 
Unfunded Actuarially Accrued Liability (UAAL) - $1,033,624 
Normal Cost - $84,450 
Amortized UAAL - $49,085 
Annual Required Contribution - $133,535 (Normal Cost + Amortized UAAL) 
Estimated Pay-As-You-Go Cost - $37,704 



 

 5

DESCRIPTION OF RETIREE BENEFITS PLAN 
 

 
The District provides certain postretirement healthcare benefits, as established by 
board policy, to eligible employees who retire from the District on or after attaining age 
55 with at least 5 years of service. 
 
Confidential and classified employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience, five 
(5) years within the District, who have reached the age of 55, may elect in writing to 
take advantage of their choice of one (1) of the following offers: 

  
A. One (1) year of retiree Health and Welfare Benefits (at the Tiered Rate as 

required by TCSIG) for Medical, Dental and Vision Plans for the retiree, 
spouse and family, or 

  
B. $13,840.50 (taxable) for the term of one (1) year. 

 
Certificated employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience including five (5) 
years with the District, who have reached the age of 55, may take advantage of their 
choice of one (1) of the following offers: 
 

A. Three (3) years of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as 
required by health care provider) for medical, dental and vision plans for the 
retiree, spouse and family, capped at the employer dollar contribution in the 
year of the unit member’s final year of service. 

 
B. A lump sum dollar amount per year (taxable) for the term of three (3) years set 

at the dollar contribution per paragraph “a” above made by the employer in the 
year of the unit member’s final year of service. 
 

C. The cap for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $15,880.50. 
 
All contracts with District employees will be renegotiated periodically in the future, thus 
costs and benefits are subject to change. Benefits and contribution requirements for 
the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) plan are established by various labor 
agreements. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 6

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND COSTS 
 
We calculated the present value of projected benefits based on the Alternative 
Measurement Method for employers in plans with fewer than 100 plan members as 
allowed by GASB Statement No. 45. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used for this calculation are summarized in Appendix B. 
 

Present Value of Total Projected Benefits

Active: Pre-65 1,967,477$ 
Post-65 126,957      

Subtotal 2,094,434   

Retiree: Pre-65 4,932          
Post-65 4,932          

Subtotal 9,865          

Subtotal Pre-65 1,972,409   
Subtotal Post-65 131,890      

Grand Total 2,104,299$ 

 
The present value of total projected benefits (PVTPB) should be accrued over the 
working lifetime of employees.  The PVTPB is used to develop expense and liability 
amounts.  The PVTPB is divided into two parts 1) amounts attributable to service 
rendered prior to the valuation date (past service liability) and 2) amounts attributable 
to service after the valuation date but prior to retirement (future service liability). 
 

Normal Cost

No. of Active Employees 37

Per Capital Normal Cost
Pre-65 2,413$        
Post-65 4,209          

First Year Normal Cost
Pre-65 76,032$      
Post-65 8,418          

Total 84,450$      

 
 
The average age of active, eligible employees is 52.  The assumed retirement age is 
63. To accrue the liability by retirement, they would accrue the retiree liability over a 
period of about 11 years. 



 

 7

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND COSTS 
(Continued) 

 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

Active: Pre-65 941,449$    
Post-65 82,311        

Subtotal 1,023,760   

Retiree: Pre-65 4,932          
Post-65 4,932          

Subtotal 9,864          

Subtotal Pre-65 946,381      
Subtotal Post-65 87,243        

Grand Total 1,033,624   
Funded at July 1, 2014 -                  
Unfunded AAL 1,033,624$ 

UAAL Amortization 49,085$      

 
The actuarial accrued liability is the amount attributed to an employee’s past service.  
The District can amortize the Unfunded AAL over a period of up to 30 years.  The table 
above shows the amount necessary to amortize the UAAL over the remaining period 
of 24 years at an interest rate of 2%. 
 

2015 2016 2017
Annual required Contribution 133,535$    133,535$    133,535$    
Interest on net OPEB obligation 5,339          7,114          8,073          
Adjustment to annual required contribution (12,428)       (16,559)       (18,793)       

     Annual OPEB cost (expense) 126,446      124,089      122,815      

Estimated contributions 37,704        76,122        61,482        

     Increase in net OPEB obligation 88,742        47,967        61,333        

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 266,936      355,678      403,645      

Net OPEB obligation - end of year 355,678$    403,645$    464,979$    

 
The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is the sum of normal cost and the UAAL 
amortization cost.  The ARC payments would continue for 24 years, after which time 
UAAL amortization payments would end.  The normal cost remains as long as there 
are qualified active employees. 



 

 8

 
APPENDIX A 

REQUIRED FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE 
 
Plan Description 
 
The District provides certain postretirement healthcare benefits, as established by 
board policy, to eligible employees who retire from the District on or after attaining age 
55 with at least 5 years of service. 
 
Confidential and classified employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience, five 
(5) years within the District, who have reached the age of 55, may elect in writing to 
take advantage of their choice of one (1) of the following offers: 

  
A. One (1) year of retiree Health and Welfare Benefits (at the Tiered Rate as 

required by TCSIG) for Medical, Dental and Vision Plans for the retiree, 
spouse and family, or 

  
B. $13,840.50 (taxable) for the term of one (1) year. 

 
Certificated employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience including five (5) 
years with the District, who have reached the age of 55, may take advantage of their 
choice of one (1) of the following offers: 
 

A. Three (3) years of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as 
required by health care provider) for medical, dental and vision plans for the 
retiree, spouse and family, capped at the employer dollar contribution in the 
year of the unit member’s final year of service. 

 
B. A lump sum dollar amount per year (taxable) for the term of three (3) years set 

at the dollar contribution per paragraph “a” above made by the employer in the 
year of the unit member’s final year of service. 

 
C. The cap for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $15,880.50. 

 
All contracts with District employees will be renegotiated periodically in the future, thus 
costs and benefits are subject to change. Benefits and contribution requirements for 
the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) plan are established by various labor 
agreements. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The District’s Board of Directors will not be funding the plan in the current year.  The 
Board will review the funding requirements and policy annually. 
 



 

 9

APPENDIX A 
REQUIRED FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE 

(Continued) 
 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The District’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC).  The 
District has elected to calculate the ARC and related information using the alternative 
measurement method permitted by GASB Statement No. 45 for employers in plans 
with fewer than one hundred total plan members.  The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year 
and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over the 
remaining period of 24 years.  The following table shows the components of the 
District’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, 
and changes in its net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Health Plan: 
 
 

Annual required Contribution 133,535$    
Interest on net OPEB obligation 5,339          
Adjustment to annual required contribution (12,428)       

     Annual OPEB cost (expense) 126,446      

Estimated contributions 37,704        

     Increase in net OPEB obligation 88,742        

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 266,936      

Net OPEB obligation - end of year 355,678$    

 



 

 10

APPENDIX A 
REQUIRED FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE 

(Continued) 
 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to 
the plan and the net OPEB obligation for the last three fiscal years is as follows: 
 

Percentage of
Annual Annual OPEB

Fiscal Year OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation

June 30, 2013 117,322$      78% 191,242$  
June 30, 2014 116,443$      35% 266,936$  
June 30, 2015 126,446$      30% 355,678$   

 
Funding Status and Funding Progress 
 
As of July 1, 2014, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $1,033,624, all 
of which is unfunded.  
 
The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrences of 
events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality and healthcare cost trends.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status 
of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer as subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress presents 
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 
 
Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the 
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of 
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-term prospective of the calculations. 
 



 

 11

APPENDIX A 
REQUIRED FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE 

(Continued) 
 
The following simplifying assumptions were made: 
 
Retirement age for active employees – Based on the historical average retirement age 
for the covered group, active plan members were assumed to retire at age 60, or at 
the first subsequent year in which the member would qualify for benefits. 
 
Mortality – Life expectancies at the calculation date are based on the most recent 
mortality tables published by the National Center for Health Statistics website 
(www.cdc.gov).  The calculation of OPEB liability for each year is based on the 
assumption that all participants will live until their expected age as displayed in the 
mortality tables. 
 
Turnover – The probability that an employee will remain employed until the assumed 
retirement age was determined using non-group-specific age-based turnover data 
provided in Table 1 in paragraph 35 of GASB Statement No. 45.  In addition the 
expected future working lifetimes of employees were determined using Table 2 in 
paragraph 35c of GASB Statement No. 45. 
 
Healthcare cost trend rate – Healthcare cost trend rates were selected based on a 
combination of national and state trend surveys as well as professional judgment.  The 
ultimate trend rate was 4.0%. 
 
Health insurance premiums – 2014-15 health insurance premiums for retirees were 
used as a basis for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.  An 
employee is assumed to continue with the same medical plan upon retirement. If an 
employee waived medical coverage, then such waiver is assumed to continue into 
retirement.  
 
Medicare Coordination – Medicare was assumed as the primary payer for current and 
future retirees at age 65.  
 
Payroll increase – Changes in the payroll for current employees are expected to 
increase at a rate of approximately 1.0% annually. 
 
Discount rate – The calculation uses an annual discount rate of 2%.  This is based on 
the assumed long-term return on plan assets or employer assets. 
 
Actuarial cost method – The entry age actuarial cost method was used.  The unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll 
on a closed basis.  The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2014 was twenty-four 
years.  
 

http://www.cdc.gov)


 

 12

APPENDIX A 
REQUIRED FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE 

(Continued) 
 
 
Plan for Funding 
 
On an ongoing basis, the District will be reviewing its assumptions, comparing them 
against actual experience and recalculating the needed funding with the goal of paying 
for postemployment benefits out of interest earned on designated funds. 
 
 
Required Supplementary Information: Schedule of Funding Progress 
 

Actuarial Accrued Actuarial Unfunded Annual UAAL
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Value of Liability Funded Covered as a %
Valuation Entry Age Assets (UAAL) Status Payroll of payroll

Date (a) (b) (a-b) (b/a) (c) ([a-b]/c)

7/1/2008 883,923$              -$            883,923$    0% 2,487,297$ 35.5%
7/1/2011 1,175,680$           -$            1,175,680$ 0% 2,807,181$ 41.9%
7/1/2014 1,033,624$           -$            1,033,624$ 0% 2,455,000$ 42.1%  

 
 
 
 
 



 

 13

APPENDIX B 
EMPLOYEE DATA 

 
The employee data listed below was provided by the management of the District for 
those that may be eligible to receive future benefits.   
 
As of July 1, 2014, there were 36 active employees and 2 retirees receiving benefits.  
The average age of active employees was 52 years and the average years of service 
was 17 years. 
 

 
 



 

 14

APPENDIX C 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

 
 
Actuarial Accrued Liability, Actuarial Liability, Accrued Liability, or Actuarial 
Reserve—The portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefits (and 
expenses, if applicable), as determined under a particular actuarial cost method, which 
is not provided for by future normal costs. Under certain actuarial cost methods, the 
actuarial accrued liability is dependent upon the actuarial value of assets.  
 
Actuarial Assumptions—Assumptions as to the occurrence of future events affecting 
benefits costs, such as mortality, withdrawal, disablement and retirement; changes in 
compensation, rates of investment earnings and asset appreciation or depreciation; 
procedures used to determine the actuarial value of assets; characteristics of future 
entrants for open group actuarial cost methods; and other relevant items.  
 
Actuarial Cost Method or Funding Method—[1] A procedure for allocating the 
actuarial present value of projected benefits (and expenses, if applicable) to time 
periods, usually in the form of a normal cost and an actuarial accrued liability 
(sometimes referred to as a funding method). [2] A procedure for allocating the 
actuarial present value of future plan costs over time periods. 
 
Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits—The actuarial present value of 
benefits that are expected to be paid in the future, taking into account the effect of 
such items as future service, advancement in age, and anticipated future 
compensation (sometimes referred to as the present value of future benefits). 
 
Actuarial Value of Assets or Valuation Assets—[1] The value of cash, investments, 
and other property belonging to a benefit plan, as used by the actuary for the purpose 
of an actuarial valuation. [2] The value of benefit plan investments and other property, 
used by the actuary for the purpose of an actuarial valuation (sometimes referred to as 
valuation assets or market-related value of assets.). 
 
Amortization Method—A method under a contribution or cost allocation procedure for 
determining the amount, timing, and pattern of recognition of the difference between 
the actuarial accrued liability and the actuarial value of assets.  
 
Discount Rate—The rate used to discount projected earnings to determine the 
present value used in an appraisal.  
 



 

 15

APPENDIX C 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

(Continued) 
 
 
Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method—A method under which the excess of the 
actuarial present value of projected benefits of the group included in an actuarial 
valuation, over the sum of the actuarial value of assets plus the unfunded frozen 
actuarial accrued liability, is allocated on a level basis over the earnings or service of 
the group between the valuation date and assumed exit. This allocation is performed 
for the group as a whole, not as a sum of individual allocations. The actuarial accrued 
liability is determined using the entry age actuarial cost method. The portion of this 
actuarial present value allocated to a valuation year is called the normal cost.  
 
Normal Cost—The portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefits (and 
expenses, if applicable) that is allocated to a period, typically twelve months, under the 
actuarial cost method. Under certain actuarial cost methods, the normal cost is 
dependent upon the actuarial value of assets.  
 
Open Amortization Period—A period that begins again or is recalculated at each 
actuarial valuation date.   Within a maximum number of years specified by law or 
policy (for example, thirty years), the period may increase, decrease, or remain stable.  
With this method, the liability would still be reduced over time, but it would take many 
times longer to amortize it fully because the amortization period would start over after 
every valuation.  In contrast, a closed amortization period is a specific number of years 
that is counted from one date and, therefore, declines to zero with the passage of time. 
For example, if the amortization period initially is thirty years on a closed basis, twenty-
nine years remain after the first year, twenty-eight years after the second year, and so 
forth. With this method, the entire liability would be fully amortized at the end of thirty 
years.  
 
Pay-as-You-Go—A method of financing a benefit plan under which the contributions 
to the plan are generally made at about the same time and in about the same amount 
as benefit payments and expenses becoming due. 
 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability, Unfunded Actuarial Liability, Unfunded 
Accrued Liability, or Unfunded Actuarial Reserve—The excess of the actuarial 
accrued liability over the actuarial value of assets. 
 
Valuation Date—[1] The date as of which the liabilities are determined. [2] The date 
as of which the values of the assets and liabilities of the plan are determined. [3] The 
date through which transactions are included in the data used in the unpaid claim 
estimate analysis.  
 







SPJUSD_Final_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_1698CEA 1

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
2013-2014 Unaudited Actuals

Presented September 9, 2014

Student Attendance/Enrollment

Attendance:
2010/2011

P2
2011/2012

P2
2012-2013

P2
2013/2014

P2
2014/2015

Proj
2015/2016

Proj
Downieville Elementary 24.97 28.39 26.89 29.17 26.60 24.70
Downieville Jr. High 5.91 5.03 6.72 5.74 5.95 6.82
Downieville Sr. High 20.85 19.50 17.03 13.86 13.30 12.35
Loyalton Elementary 176.05 171.30 156.91 165.24 163.20 159.36
Loyalton Middle 51.89 49.71 48.52 42.58 46.55 56.05
Loyalton High 112.82 107.73 103.16 90.97 96.29 97.52
Sierra Pass – Continuation 1.34 1.15 4.66 3.49 1.00 1.00
District Total 393.83 382.81 363.89 351.05 352.89 357.80
Washoe Students 10.21 10.21
Supplemental Percent 49.34% 49.67% 49.60%
Enrollment: CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS proj CBEDS proj

Downieville Elementary 28 27 28 29 20 20
Downieville Jr. Sr. High 30 27 24 21 24 24
Loyalton Elementary 187 176 159 172 176 178
Loyalton 7-8 graders 56 49 53 w/LHS w/LHS w/LHS
Loyalton High 120 112 104 146 144 146
Sierra Pass – Continuation 3 0 5 9 3 4
District Total 424 391 373 377 367 372

General Fund Form 01:

Ending Fund Balance (page 2, F.2)
Beginning Fund Balance 7/01/2014:   $2,496,090
Ending Fund Balance: 6/30/2014: $2,755,931 - an increase of ($259,841).

Components of Ending Fund Balance 2013-2014
1) Revolving Cash: $ 3,400
2) Prepaid Exp.: $ 3,055
3) Restricted: $   125,626
4) OPEB: $ 266,936
5) REU: $ 514,950
6) Unassigned: $1,841,964

REVENUE
Local Control Funding Formula
The LCFF is intended to provide a funding mechanism that is simple and transparent while allowing local
educational agencies (LEAs) maximum flexibility in allocating resources to meet local needs. Therefore, most
State Categorical programs have been eliminated. District’s students per ADA will be funded by their grade level.
In addition to the base grade rate will be an increase per K-3 students, 9-12 for Career Technical Education, and
supplemental and possible concentration grant funds. The State anticipates full LCFF funding in approximately
seven years. Currently, DOF estimates for LCFF gap funding for 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 are as follows:

Year 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Gap Funding 28.06% 30.39% 19.50%



SPJUSD_Final_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_1698CEA 2

The chart below compares revenue for 2011-2012 actuals, 2012-2013 actuals, 2013-2014 budget and unaudited
actuals, and 2014-2015 budget.

Description 2011-2012
Actuals

2012-2013
Actuals

2013-2014
Original
Budget

2013-2014
Unaudited

Actuals

2013-2014
Increase/(decrease)

Budget vs. UA

2014-2015
Budget

LCFF $3,067,795 $2,997,032 $2,983,765 $3,981,735 $997,970 $4,108,347
Federal 742,003 607,441 94,371 569,490 475,119 552,813
Other State 1,074,867 1,126,226 1,079,588 166,326 (913,262) 354,763
Local 255,443 226,560 244,018 224,078 (19,940) 229,191

Pliocene Sale 460,000 467,749 7,749
Total $5,140,108 $4,957,259 $4,861,742 $5,409,378 547,636 $5,245,114

Expenditures and Financing Uses

3,981,735
74%569,490

10%

166,326
3%

224,078
4%

467,749
9%

Revenue  $5,409,378

LCFF Sources

Federal

Other State

Local

Pliocene Sale

1,706,737
33%

666,389
13%

1,073,568
21%

171,609
3%

1,332,433
26%

49,763
1%

588
0%

60,851
1% 87,600

2%

Expenditures and Financing Uses    $5,149,538

Certificated Salary

Classified Salary

Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies

Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo to SCOE

Transfer to Cafeteria

T/F to Special Reserve



SPJUSD_Final_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_1698CEA 3

The chart below compares revenue for 2011-2012 actuals, 2012-2013 actuals, 2013-2014 budget and unaudited
actuals, and 2014-2015 budget.

Description 2011-2012
Actuals

2012-2013
Actuals

2013-2014
Original
Budget

2013-2014
Unaudited

Actuals

2013-2014
Increase/(decrease)

Budget vs. UA

2014-2015
Budget

Certificated $1,755,714 $1,719,914 $1,690,042 $1,706,737 16,695 $1,765,536
Classified 748,129 722,908 659,674 666,389 6,715 701,387
Benefits 1,193,047 1,144,013 1,108,359 1,073,568 (34,791) 1,146,838
Books & Supplies 207,406 184,338 116,473 171,609 55,136 225,829
Services & Operating 1,334,544 1,353,515 1,438,695 1,332,433 (106,262) 950,406
Capital Outlay 76,215 47,280 121,000 49,763 (71,237) 267,953
Special Ed Billback 28,762 27,125 (27,125) 0
Outgo to SCOE 588 588
Outgo to Washoe 80,000
Trfr to Special Reserve 5,970 87,600 87,600 81,350
Trfr to Cafeteria 41,709 58,496 76,474 60,851 (15,623) 64,218
Trfr to Facility Fund 375 770,601 376,834 0.00 (376,834)
Total $5,357,139 $6,035,797 $5,614,676 $5,149,538 (465,138) $5,283,517

 Transportation
o 2013-2014

 Sierra Transportation $176,949
 White’s Bus 475,000

$651,949

 State Funding $488,250
 Local 7,258

$495,508

o 2013-2014 shortfall: $156,441

 Capital Assets……………………………………….$5,060,514
Additions:
Building Improvements:
 LHS Roof/Fire Upgrade …….…..$1,629,269
 AG Barn Repair…………………..$     16,168

Deletions:
Building Improvements:
 LHS Roof/Fire Upgrade …….…..$ 616,003

Work in Progress
Land Improvements:
 Loyalton High Parking Lot ………$ 97,600

 Classroom Compensation, Form CEA,  per Ed Code 41374
o Minimum percent of current cost expended for classroom is 55%: District’s is 52.24%
o Deficiency amount: $110,962
o County Superintendent waived penalty

 Debt
o OPEB obligation, annual required contribution less pay-as-you go:  $266,936
o Compensated Absences Payable:  $14,922

 Indirect Cost Preliminary Rate:
o Fiscal Year 2013-2014: 18.30%
o Fiscal Year 2014-2015: 16.44%
o Fiscal Year 2015-2016: 8.76%

 Lottery:



SPJUSD_Final_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative_1698CEA 4

o NonProp20
 Funded at $125 per ADA
 Computers and technology material
 Technology contracted services
 PowerSchool training
 Field trip transportation

o Prop20
 Funded at $31.00 ADA
 Instructional textbooks

 No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort (MOE)
o Required effort: $11,994.24
o Expenditure per ADA $13,430.25 MOE Met

OTHER FUNDS

Cafeteria Fund 13:
Downieville Loyalton

Meals Served 13/14 12/13 13/14 12/13
Breakfast 2,994 3,432 7,115 4,775
Lunch 5,548 5,832 18,514 18,077

Cost Per Meal
Breakfast $2.88 $1.92 $2.72 $3.86
Lunch $4.52 $4.08 $5.86 $5.76

Deficit $9,321 $51,531

County School Facilities Fund 35
Loyalton High Replacement roof was completed August 2013 for a total cost of 1.6M, including all abatement.
Office of Public Construction Hardship Program released funds August 2014 in the amount of $1,015,625.

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects
Loyalton High Paving Project at June 30, 2014, was 52% completed for a total cost of $355,154.

The Portable Restroom project was accepted by the State Spring of 2014. August 2014, the District received
$20,948 from the City leaving a balance of $11,153.

Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 73
The Scholarship started in 1986 for the purpose to award one scholarship to a qualified Loyalton High School
student. The term of the scholarship has been satisfied, and currently the fund awards three scholarships in the
amount of $1,000.  Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2014 is $54,217.






































































































































	1_09_09_14_SPJUSD_AGENDA.pdf
	2_Sierra-Plumas USD 14-15 LCAP Approval Letter.pdf
	3_SPJUSD August 2014 ObjSumm.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	





	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	





	
	
	
	
	
	





	
	
	
	
	
	
	





	
	
	
	
	
	









	4_First Day Enrollments 2014-15.pdf
	5_CDE_Letter.pdf
	6_Grants Received.pdf
	7_08_12_14_SPJUSD Minutes.pdf
	8_SPJUSD August 2014 Checks.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	



	9_14-007 Gann Limit.pdf
	11.5_SPJUSD OPEB Report 7-1-2014 Final.pdf
	10_FieldTrip.pdf
	11_SPJUSD_Final_Unaudited_Actuals 2013_2014 Narrative.pdf
	12_SPJUSD Unaudited Actuals.pdf

